
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. May 27, 2025 Regular Session Minutes 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Ivy Jackson Davis is nominated to the Senior Commission by Councilmember Stacy Clay. 
2. Edward Nickels is nominated for re-appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission by Councilmember 

Stacy Clay. 
3. Garrie Burr is nominated for appointment to the Senior Commission by Councilmember Dennis Fuller. 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Paul Timothy Brady was sworn in to the Traffic Commission on June 3rd in the clerk’s office. 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to 
the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when submitting 
your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not 
provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (FY26) Proposed Budget 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 
1. CDBG 2023 Street Improvements- Recommendation of Contract Award 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1. City Manager Updates 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 
1. BILL 9571  AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTIONS 120.140, 120.750, 120.760, 120.770, 120.780, 

120.790, 120.800, 120.810 AND 120.820 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO 
THE COMMISSION FOR ACCESS AND LOCAL ORIGINATION PROGRAMMING (CALOP), AND 
TERMINATING CALOP. 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, June 9, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required)  

 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
1. BILL 9572  AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS AND 

EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER JULY 1, 2025, AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 7376. 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Board and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

a)  
 

P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes of 
action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
NOTE:  Due to construction the only entrance to City Hall for City Council meetings will be via the east side door on 
Sgt. Mike King Dr. (wood ramp).   
 
 
Posted June 6, 2025. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes     Page 1 of 7 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Tuesday, May 27, 2025,
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay  
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Lisa Brenner 
Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John Mulligan, Jr.; 
Deputy City Manager, Brooke Sharp, and Chief of Police, Larry Hampton. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Councilmember Smotherson requested that Items 1 and 4 be moved from the Consent
Agenda, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

Voice vote approving the Amended Agenda carried unanimously. 

D. PROCLAMATIONS - (Acknowledgement)
1. Reverend Monsignor Michael E. Turek– Christ the King Church Retirement Celebration.

Mayor Crow stated on behalf of everyone in U City, he would like to thank Monsignor Turek for 
his dedication to this community. 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. May 12, 2025, Study Session Minutes; (CALOP), was moved by Councilmember Fuller, it

was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson, and the motion carried unanimously.
2. May 12, 2025, Regular Session Minutes, was moved by Councilmember Smotherson, it

was seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and the motion carried unanimously.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Ethan McCollum is nominated to the Board of Appeals by Councilmember Bwayne

Smotherson, it was seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and the motion carried
unanimously.

2. Yann Estaque is nominated to the Green Practices Commission by Councilmember
Bwayne Smotherson, it was seconded by Councilmember Brenner, and the motion
carried unanimously.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Tuesday, May 27, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes     Page 2 of 7 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Diane Lindsay was sworn in to the Senior Commission on May 9th, in the Clerk’s office.

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the
entrance.  Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room.

Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.
Comments may be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall –
6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention, City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to the City Council prior to
the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public
online following the meeting.

Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please
also note whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are
not provided, the comment will not be recorded in the official record.

Citizen Comments
Hannah Brick, 1079 Wilson Avenue, U City, MO
Ms. Brick read the following statement into the record:
"Since the last Council Meeting Liam and I have continued to experience events that affected
our family's well-being.  The tornado that came through on May 16th took out two large trees
in our neighbor's yard resulting in the loss of power for five days at our home.  We were
fortunate that our house was minimally damaged, and we could safely stay at home.  While
we were picking up the pieces from that event another rainstorm came through overnight on
the eighteenth and early morning of the nineteenth.  We hardly slept that night knowing that
without power we would have to manually remove the water in our sump pump.  The River
de Peres crested at 12.85 feet at 12:40 in the morning.  Our historical data from other
previous weather events lets us know that the river floods at 14 feet, where it will then come
into the street and into our house when it gets to 16 feet.  So, this 12.85 feet was
dangerously close.  This was the third event this calendar year that we have stayed up
anxiously waiting for water to fill our home and scrambling to make sure we can stay safe.  I
have also included a chart in this statement which shows all of the flooding events since the
July 2022 flood.  We would continue to ask Mayor Crow and the members of the City Council
for their support of the flood Buyout Program.  We ask that the Mayor's Office and the City
Council also support John Wagner, and provide the appropriate support needed so that this
can be completed in a timely manner."  Thank you for your time.

. 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Fuller stated that he would like to express his appreciation to the following
individuals and organizations for their support during the May 16th tornado relief efforts.

Reverend Carlos Smith and his congregation at Refresh Church, for becoming a Red
Cross shelter in U City, and Grace Methodist Church at Waterman and Skinker for becoming
a Red Cross shelter in the eastern portions of U City.  Both congregations supplied much of
the food for the individuals and families in need of their shelters.

Fireman/EMS Alexis Shady, Fire Chief Henson, and the Firemen/EMS staff of
Firehouse 1, for providing truckloads of cleaning supplies, food, and toiletries to the St. Louis
City Fire Department under their Mutual Aid Agreement.  These supplies were gathered from
the citizens of U City within a matter of days, which made him proud to be a resident of U
City.

Finally, Mr. Eric Karch, his staff, and the volunteers that hosted the successful Memorial
Day Run.  This year they put out a request for participants and spectators to bring disaster
relief supplies, which generated approximately 1,400 donors.  So, thank you to all.

E - 1 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                                Page 3 of 7 
 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 

K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 
1. Farmers Market Agreement; (moved to City Manager's Report) 
2. Canton Phase II Construction Engineering  Services and Design Work Contract 
3. Millar Park Change Order - Update 
4. Purchase of a mobile surveillance trailer (Public Safety); (moved to City Manager's 

Report) 
5. Ameren Missouri Easement at 624 Kingsland 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve Items 2, 3, and 5 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. Farmers Market Agreement 

Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider the Farmers Market 
Agreement that will be presented by Deputy City Manager Brooke Sharp. 
 

Ms. Sharp stated last year was the end of an era for the Farmers Market's location in the Delmar 
Loop.  As a result, the Market reached out to the City in January to assist them with finding a 
new location.  Their initial suggestion was Heman Park; however, staff concluded that it would 
make the one entry in and out of the park too congested.  Director Girdler's suggestion of the 
parking lot at Centennial Commons was presented to the Parks Commission, accepted, and 
staff began to draft the Facility Use Agreement for the Market.  The agreement was presented to 
the Commission for review last week, which also asked them to establish a fee that mirrored the 
pavilion fee at Heman Park; $50 per use for residents, and $100 per use for nonresidents.  After 
the Commission accepted the Agreement and established a fee, the Market; which does not 
have a U City address, requested to waive the fee of $100 per use for nonresidents since they 
are open twice a week, totaling $800 a month.  Ultimately, the Commission recommended that; 
 The Market's fee be reduced to $200 for June; and 
 If the EDRST Board voted to approve the Market's request for an increase in their annual 

award, the Market would be required to pay the full rental rate of $800 per month from 
July to November; and 

 If the EDRST Board did not honor the Market's request for additional funds, the reduced 
rate of $200 per month would remain in effect until the end of their season, but before 
negotiating a contract for next year, the fee would be revisited.   

 
Councilmember Smotherson stated what's confusing is why the Commission recommended that 
the Market take money from the EDRST to give back to the City rather than simply reducing the 
fee to $200 per month?  Ms. Sharp stated while the EDRST Board is not the Market's only 
funding source, it is the most readily available since they will be meeting in July.  So, if they are 
unable to get the additional funds the fee will remain at $200 per month based on the 
understanding that they would have to incorporate the rental fee at the normal rate into their 
budget for next year.  Councilmember Smotherson stated in his opinion, they should just be 
required to pay the $200 per month this year, and given an opportunity to incorporate the normal 
rate into their budget for next year. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he thinks the reason for this recommendation is that it keeps the Parks 
Department whole by not having to subsidize the Farmers Market with funds needed for all of 
the City's parks.  So, if you think about it that way, the EDRST is probably the more appropriate 
route for providing this type of subsidy. 
 

E - 1 - 3



 

   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                                Page 4 of 7 
 

Councilmember Smotherson thanked Mayor Crow for his explanation and asked whether staff 
had considered whether the Farmers Market would have an impact on the Annual Yard Sale 
being held on September 13th of this year?  Ms. Sharp stated the Farmers Market has been 
authorized to use the green space and parking lot located immediately in front of the fountain.  
So, while there may be a need to reroute traffic on the thirteenth, staff believes that both events 
will be able to take place simultaneously. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated one issue that the Commission encountered during this 
process was that the rental fee was not disclosed until after the Farmers Market had been told 
they could operate in Heman Park.  The other issue was establishing a fee that would not 
impact the individual farmers or cause them to raise their prices in order to pay the additional 
fee.  So, both of these issues were considered by the Commission and that's how they arrived at 
the $200 per month rate and a request to the EDRST to cover the additional $600, because they 
wanted to treat them fairly and ensure that the Market would continue until they had time to 
incorporate it in their budget next year. 
 
Councilmember Fuller stated when the Market operated in The Loop they had a whole set of 
buildings that they used to sell their produce out of.  So, will the farmers have to provide their 
shelters, or will the City be setting up shelters for them?  And if so, will they remain in the park 
throughout the season?   Ms. Sharp stated her understanding is that they will no longer have a 
permanent structure like they did in The Loop, and this year they are being asked to provide 
their own tents.  This is all very new and as it develops some changes may be warranted next 
year. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Brenner, 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. Purchase of a mobile surveillance trailer (Public Safety 

Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider the purchase of a mobile 
surveillance trailer, and the specific details will be presented by Chief Hampton. 
 

Chief Hampton stated the mobile surveillance trailer is an approved capital improvement project, 
and while Council is privy to some of the price quotes, others are still being received. The Police 
Department has never owned a rapid surveillance trailer, so this purchase is being viewed as an 
advancement in the department's technology to satisfy several pillars identified in its 21st 
Century Policing Task Force goals.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated the reason he asked to have this moved to the City 
Manager's Report is because the specific details about this equipment were not provided in 
Council's packet.  He stated he thinks this is a great piece of technology, however, typically, he's 
only seen it used in large parking lots.  Is that something this mobile unit will be used for?  Chief 
Hampton stated usually the trailers that you see in Walmart or other parking lots are privately 
owned.   But this trailer which is solar and battery powered will be used to maximize the 
department's efforts to protect the public's interest at large gatherings, business districts, etc.  
Councilmember Smotherson thanked Chief Henderson for his explanation. 
 
Mr. Rose stated even though the City has drones that can be used for surveillance, this is a 
portable tool that can be used to continuously monitor suspicious activity within a given area. 
  
Chief Hampton stated that is correct.  It should be viewed as a hot spot policing mechanism that 
plays into the department's goals of community policing/crime reduction and deterrence.   
 

E - 1 - 4



 

   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                                Page 5 of 7 
 

Councilmember McMahon asked if this piece of equipment would remain idle when there are no 
special events or large gatherings in the City?  Chief Hampton stated it will also be deployed for 
traffic abatement in specific areas like the Expressway to provide the department with analytics 
and data.  However, since it is not hardwired, it requires approximately five to seven days to 
recharge.  Councilmember McMahon asked if the department would be coordinating with the 
school district to assist them with some of their larger events?  Chief Hampton stated that they 
would be.  Councilmember McMahon asked if the unit would be deployed to gather data on 
traffic complaints like consistent speeding or the running of stop signs?  Chief Hampton stated 
while it's possible, trees in residential areas diminish the trailer's solar capabilities and reduce its 
output.  So, in those situations, it would be better to use pole cameras.  
 
Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson, and 
the motion carried unanimously.  
 

3. City Manager's Updates 
Storm Recovery Efforts  
Mr. Rose reported that on the afternoon of Friday, May 16, 2025, a destructive tornado 
touched down in the St. Louis Metropolitan area.  Several jurisdictions were impacted, 
including U City.  While the entire City was affected in some manner, the brunt of the 
storm's force was felt in the Parkview Subdivision.   
 The City's recovery efforts started the night of the storm with officers assessing 
roadways and coordinating with the Forestry Department to remove downed limbs and 
trees blocking streets.  The morning after the storm he began assessing the damage to 
neighborhoods, and at the suggestion of Mayor Crow, visited Parkview.  Based on the 
damage he observed, he authorized a sweep of the entire City to collect limbs and 
eligible trees within the right-of-ways.  He also requested that special attention be given 
to Parkview by hiring outside contractors to supplement the City's employees. 
 In the days following the storm, staff coordinated with Ameren to restore power to 
residents without electricity, and Refresh Church to aid residents needing assistance with 
shelter.  If you are aware of any resident that still requires assistance please have them 
contact the Red Cross at 1-800-Red Cross. 
 Tomorrow staff is scheduled to meet with FEMA and SEMA who will conduct their 
assessment of the damage in U City.  This assessment is two-fold; (1) the total cost for 
recovery, and (2) the amount of time it will take to fully recover. 
 Mr. Rose recognized all of the employees who went above and beyond their normal 
duties to assist in these recovery operations.  He stated special recognition is warranted 
for City Forester, Jacob Kaiser and his staff for working into the early morning hours 
making sure the City's roads were cleared of storm debris. 

 
Mayor Crow stated he is sure that he and his colleagues would also like to thank the City's 
employees for their assistance in getting everybody through this storm. 

 
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rd readings) 

 
1. BILL 9569 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MINOR 

SUBDIVISION OF LAND AT 749 AND 801 SWARTHMORE LANE TO BE KNOWN AS 
"801 SWARTHMORE LANE."  Bill Number 9569 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Clay moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated he lives down the street from these lots, and while 749 
Swarthmore is within the Brittany Woods Subdivision, 801 is not.  Initially, this raised a red flag in 
his mind because he would have been unwilling to support this Bill if it meant leaving 801 out of 
the subdivision and possibly creating a dispute between neighbors.   

E - 1 - 5



 

   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                                Page 6 of 7 
 

However, after speaking to his Trustees, he learned that the intent is to bring 801 into Brittany 
Woods after the two addresses are merged into one lot. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Tieman, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Brenner, 
Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 
 

2. BILL 9570 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS APPROVED BY 
ORDINANCE NO. 7351 RELATING TO AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
FOR 711 KINGSLAND AVENUE.  Bill Number 9570 was read for the second and third 
time. 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Brenner, Councilmember Smotherson, 
Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Tieman, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 
  None 
Bills - (No vote required for introduction and 1st reading) 
   Introduced by Councilmember Smotherson 

1. BILL 9571 - AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTIONS 120.140, 120.750, 120.760, 
120.770, 120.780, 120.790, 120.800, 120.810, AND 120.820 OF THE UNIVERSITY 
CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE COMMISSION FOR ACCESS AND 
LOCAL ORIGINATION PROGRAMMING (CALOP), AND TERMINATING CALOP.  Bill 
Number 9571 was read for the first time. 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1.   Board and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

 
Councilmember Clay thanked the outgoing executive team for their leadership on the 
Library Board and welcomed the newly elected Library Board President Mark Barnes.  
  

3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Smotherson stated that he would like to make two suggestions that he hopes 
will be revisited at a later date.  
  That the baseball field at Millar Park be renamed Ewald Winker Field, and  
  That the Splash Pad be renamed the Elsie Glickert Splash Pad. 

 
Mayor Crow stated he would agree that Parkview experienced the brunt of the storm, and it 
was amazing to see just how much destruction it caused.  So, to our first responders and 
Forestry Department, thank you so very much.  However, now is the time to broaden our 
definition of neighbor by looking to the north at the utter destruction this storm caused to the 
residents in those neighborhoods.   

E - 1 - 6



 

   May 27, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes                                Page 7 of 7 
 

Mayor Crow stated it was heartwarming to see the number of U City residents who have 
donated and volunteered their time.  It is greatly appreciated.  
 For the eighth time, Mayor Crow stated he has had the pleasure of starting U City's 
Memorial Day Run.  It was a perfect morning that haled one of the largest crowds they have 
had in a very long time.  It felt great to see everybody out for such a good cause. 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to adjourn the Regular Session, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously.   

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Crow adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m. 
 

LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 1 - 7



Dear Mayor Crow and Members of the City Council, 
 
 My name is Liam Briick, and I am a resident of 1079 Wilson Avenue. 
 

Since the last council meeting, my wife Hannah and I continued to experience events 
that affected our family's wellbeing. The tornado that came through on May 16th took out 2 large 
trees in our neighbor's yard, resulting in a loss of power for 5 days. We are fortunate that our 
house was minimally damaged and we can safely stay in the home. While we were picking up 
the pieces of that event, another storm came in overnight on the 18th and into the early morning 
of the 19th.  
 
 We hardly slept that night, knowing that without power, we would have to manually 
vacuum out water in our sump pump. The River Des Peres crested at 12.85  feet at 12:40 in the 
morning. Our historical data from previous weather events tell us that when the river gets over 
14 feet, it will flood across the street, and once its over 16 feet it will come onto Wilson Avenue 
and then into our house. This was the 3rd time this calendar year that we stayed up anxiously 
waiting for water to fill our home and scrambling to make sure we are able to stay safe. See the 
chart below for additional information.  

 
We are continuing to ask for your support through the FEMA flood buyout grant program. 

We ask that the Mayor’s office provide Dr. John Wagner with the appropriate support needed to 
complete this process in a timely manner. Thank you. 

 
Liam Briick 

E - 1 - 8



 
 
This chart shows the flood events since July 1, 2022. The river flooded on 7/26/22, 8/5/22, 
4/1/24, and 11/5/24. Note that there are several additional near-flood events that cause 
incredible stress to the residents on Wilson Avenue, as each one is a threat to our home and 
our personal safety.  
 

E - 1 - 9





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

PH20250609-01

Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (FY26) Proposed Budget

Keith Cole, Director of Finance Finance / All
Public Hearing No

N/A

See attached

See attached N/A

See attached See attached

The Council of the City of University City will hold a public hearing at 6:30pm on Monday, June 9, 
2025, on the proposed Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (FY26) Budget. The proposed Fiscal Year 
2025-2026 (FY26) Budget is available for public view via access on the City's website.  This 
hearing provides an opportunity for public comment.

Included in the proposed Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (FY26) Budget, the property tax rates for General Fund is 
being recommended to assume reduced tax rates as compared to FY2025.  The current property tax rates 
are as follows: 
Residential - $0.4150 
Commercial - $0.5100 
Personal Property - $0.6800 

N/A

1. All Funds Budget Summary
2. City-Wide Operating Budget by Department
3. Capital Improvement Projects by Fund

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose June 9, 2025

J - 1 - 1



The Proposed Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (FY26) Budget is available for public view via access on the 
City’s website.  This hearing provides an opportunity for public comment. 

Please note, the Library Fund budget is not included in the All Funds budget amounts.  The 
Library Board will approve the Library Fund Budget in a June meeting.     

The General Fund serves as the City’s Operating Fund and below is a detail of the Fund’s 
Proposed Budget. 

Total Revenues - All Funds 53,830,183$   

Total Expenditures - All Funds 56,345,854$   

FY 2025 FY 2026
Beginning Total Fund Balance (estimated) 15,028,042$   12,628,207$   

Projected Revenue 26,440,750     26,513,950     
Projected Expenditures as shown in 

Proposed Budget (30,668,371) (31,689,140) 
Transfer In from Other Funds 3,885,786       5,832,355       
Transfer Out to Other Funds (2,058,000) (2,260,919) 
Budget Amendment (net) - - 

Ending Fund Balance 12,628,207     11,024,453     
Less Year-End Commitments (estimated) - - 

Undesignated Fund Balance 12,628,207     11,024,453     
Fund Balance as a Percentage of

Operating Expenditures 38.6% 32.5%

  Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Proposed Budget 

J - 1 - 2



(I) All Funds Budget Summary

Revenues
FY 2023        
Actual

FY 2024        
Actual FY 2025 Original

FY 2025 
Amended

FY 2025 
Estimated

FY 2026 
Budget

% over FY 
2025

General 34,796,219         31,742,622        30,576,536       30,576,536       30,576,536       32,346,305      6%

Capital Improvement 2,760,272           2,936,999          2,940,200         2,940,200         2,940,200         3,053,320        4%

Park and Stormwater 1,994,721           1,959,672          2,100,200         2,100,200         2,100,200         2,200,100        5%

Public Safety 12,122,276         14,226,441        7,638,585         7,638,585         7,638,585         2,500,100        -67%

Fire Service - - 1,050,000         1,050,000         1,050,000         1,150,000        10%

Grants 458,696              648,549             653,000            653,000            653,000            578,000           -11%

Golf Course 1,136,292           1,437,351          1,000,000         1,000,000         1,000,000         1,100,000        10%

Library 4,570,717           3,397,309          3,219,775         3,219,775         3,219,775         - -100%

Fleet Maintenance 1,884,217           2,328,043          1,700,000         1,700,000         1,700,000         1,928,951        13%

Solid Waste 5,067,835           3,093,122          3,560,200         3,560,200         3,560,200         4,632,700        30%

Public Parking Garage 181,921              165,162             169,000            169,000            169,000            181,000           7%

Debt Service 900,000              - 1,000,000 1,000,000         1,000,000         1,808,757        81%

Loop Business District 246,040              375,347             78,020              78,020 78,020 79,050             1%

Parkview Gardens Special District 149,917              109,063             95,800              95,800 95,800 97,800             2%

Economic Development Sales Tax 943,223              1,123,056          1,200,300         1,200,300         1,200,300         1,300,100        8%

American Rescue Plan 3,502,975           - - - - - 0%

Olive I-170 TIF 106,147,214       4,466,615          - - - - 0%

CALOP - - - - - - 0%

Third Ward Revitalization 371,332              309,108             304,000            304,000            304,000            304,000           0%

Equipment Replacement - 100,000 - - - - 0%

Sewer Lateral 566,428              562,052 570,000            570,000            570,000            570,000           0%

Total 177,800,295       68,980,511        57,855,616       57,855,616       57,855,616       53,830,183      -7%
Revenues include Transfers In

Expenditures
FY 2023        
Actual

FY 2024        
Actual FY 2025 Original

FY 2025 
Amended

FY 2025 
Estimated

FY 2026 
Budget

% over FY 
2025

General 34,953,632         32,030,201        32,876,371       32,876,371       32,876,371       33,950,059      3%

Capital Improvement 2,298,546           6,483,857          4,199,958         4,199,958         4,199,958         3,971,919        -5%

Park and Stormwater 1,822,536           3,043,480          2,654,353         2,654,353         2,654,353         2,362,690        -11%

Public Safety 6,486,323           9,776,263          6,575,920         6,575,920         6,575,920         2,264,184        -66%

Fire Service - - 1,050,000         1,050,000         1,050,000         1,150,000        10%

Grants 556,967              1,033,852          653,000            653,000            653,000            578,000           -11%

Golf Course 1,019,395           1,050,736          1,240,506         1,240,506         1,240,506         1,457,994        18%

Library 3,389,854           3,901,960          3,219,775         3,219,775         3,219,775         - -100%

Fleet Maintenance 1,922,457           2,445,574          1,690,757         1,690,757         1,690,757         1,938,239        15%

Solid Waste 3,765,499           4,576,142          3,863,627         3,863,627         3,863,627         4,633,161        20%

Public Parking Garage 212,041              185,209             272,990            272,990            272,990            343,142           26%

Debt Service - 12 - - - 1,808,750        100%

Loop Business District 296,853              369,954 75,600              75,600 75,600 90,601             20%

Parkview Gardens Special District 88,065 123,174 95,800              95,800 95,800 97,800             2%

Economic Development Sales Tax 631,707              1,205,323          882,915            882,915            882,915            979,700           11%

American Rescue Plan 3,502,975           - - - - - 0%

Olive I-170 TIF 100,688,431       4,789,433          - - - - 0%

CALOP 10,000 - - - - - 0%

Third Ward Revitalization 745,659              220,325             - - - - 0%

Equipment Replacement - - - - - 100,000           100%

Sewer Lateral 327,911              340,664             546,255            546,255            546,255            619,615           13%

Total 162,718,851       71,576,159        59,897,827       59,897,827       59,897,827       56,345,854      -6%
Expenditures include Transfers Out

The table below summarizes the total revenues and expenditures for All Funds, except the Library Fund

Note: the Library Fund budget is not included in this budget. The Library Board will approve the Library budget during a June meeting

J - 1 - 3



(III) City-Wide Operating Budget by Department

Revenues
FY 2023        
Actual

FY 2024        
Actual

FY 2025 
Original

FY 2025 
Amended

FY 2025 
Estimated

FY 2026 
Budget

% over FY 
2025

Property Taxes 9,686,106         12,848,837      8,429,275         8,429,275 8,429,275 4,499,000       -47%

Sales & Use Tax 15,672,198       16,850,282      17,290,000       17,290,000 17,290,000 17,925,000     4%

Intergovernmental 2,638,245         2,736,448        2,667,500         2,667,500 2,667,500 2,705,000       1%

Grants 1,672,980         1,818,529        838,000            838,000 838,000 578,000          -31%

Licenses 667,559            884,988           732,300            732,300 732,300 898,800          23%

Gross Receipts Tax 7,070,920         6,337,479        6,130,000         6,130,000 6,130,000 6,370,000       4%

Inspection Fees and Permits 1,626,173         1,092,160        1,329,450         1,329,450 1,329,450 1,018,450       -23%

Service Charges 5,129,016         5,279,203        5,528,000         5,528,000 5,528,000 6,822,500       23%

Parks & Recreation Fees 1,220,933         1,652,841        1,445,000         1,445,000 1,445,000 1,645,000       14%

Municipal Court and Parking 556,897            732,991           778,500            778,500 778,500 911,700          17%

Interest 7,166,350         9,948,759        2,538,220         2,538,220 2,538,220 122,250          -95%

Miscellaneous 6,122,869         1,673,056        1,506,350         1,506,350 1,506,350 499,200          -67%

Transfer In 118,570,049 7,124,939        8,643,021         8,643,021 8,643,021 9,835,283       14%
Total 177,800,295 68,980,511      57,855,616       57,855,616 57,855,616 53,830,183     -7%

Revenues include Transfers In

Expenditures
FY 2023        
Actual

FY 2024        
Actual

FY 2025 
Original

FY 2025 
Amended

FY 2025 
Estimated

FY 2026 
Budget

% over FY 
2025

Legislative 188,747            206,422           233,710            233,710 233,710 241,660          3%

City Manager's Office 105,897,468 6,340,227        755,377            755,377 755,377 919,120          22%

Communications 323,205            325,116           423,480            423,480 423,480 428,864          1%

Economic Development 631,707            1,205,323        882,915            882,915 882,915 979,700          11%

Human Resources 362,807            436,617           453,021            453,021 453,021 466,094          3%

Information Technology 475,859            559,299           493,898            493,898 493,898 541,630          10%

Facilities Maintenance 906,090            1,086,131        1,106,400         1,106,400 1,106,400 1,071,695       -3%

Finance 862,739            902,747           1,106,400         1,106,400 1,106,400 1,150,110       4%

Municipal Court 406,772            415,886           466,445            466,445 466,445 499,262          7%

Police 9,504,883         9,548,693        10,944,654       10,944,654 10,944,654 11,143,761     2%

Fire 8,529,384         9,188,148        7,794,975         7,794,975 7,794,975 9,141,373       17%

Planning & Development 1,812,185         1,959,618        2,151,925         2,151,925 2,151,925 1,996,185       -7%

Park Recreation & Forestry 15,825,527       10,980,502      10,343,694       10,343,694 10,343,694 7,020,039       -32%

Public Works 10,113,753       14,914,855      11,385,722       11,385,722 11,385,722 8,402,692       -26%

Debt Service 114,411            114,411           1,000,000         1,000,000 1,000,000 1,808,750       81%

Transfer Out 3,500,000         - - - - 10,346,518     100%

Component Units: - - - 

Library 3,389,854 3,901,960        3,219,775         3,219,775 3,219,775 - -100%

Loop Business District 296,853 369,954           75,600              75,600 75,600 90,601            20%

Parkview Gardens 88,065 123,174           95,800              95,800 95,800 97,800            2%

Capital Improvement - - - - - - 0%
Total 163,230,310 62,579,082      52,933,791       52,933,791 52,933,791 56,345,854     6%

Expenditures include Transfers Out

The table below summarizes all funds revenues by Type and expenditures by Department, except the Library Fund

Note: the Library Fund budget is not included in this budget. The Library Board will approve the Library budget during a June meeting

J - 1 - 4



Summary of 
Capital Improvement Program By Fund Project # Priority FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 Total

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
Transfer Station Truck & Trailer - 2026-01 (Equip Fd $100,000) PWSW26-01 1 100,000            - - - - 100,000            

Total EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT Fund 100,000            - - - - 100,000            

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND
Agrimetal 4000 1 - 50,000 - - - 50,000              
Groundsmaster 5900 Series 1 - 150,000 - - - 150,000            
Park Dump Truck Replacement 2 - 210,000 - - - 210,000            
Curb and sidewalk replacement PW26/30-03 2 400,000            - - - - 400,000            
Street Maintenance Program PW26 1 300,000            - - - - 300,000            
Federal SF-424 Electrical Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations PW26-01 1 130,000            - - - - 130,000            
Sidewalk Program Concrete Jobs - In house or contract 3 - 50,000 50,000              50,000           50,000           200,000            
Police Vehicle Fleet & Equip Replace PD#002 1 150,000            - - - - 150,000            
Police Duty Weapons & Equipment PD#004 1 200,000            - - - - 200,000            
Communications radio replacement FIRE 2026-01 1 20,000              50,000              50,000              50,000           - 170,000 
Fire House 2 Kitchen Cabinets FIRE 2026-02 2 30,000              - - - - 30,000 

Total Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 1,230,000         510,000            100,000            100,000         50,000           1,990,000         

GENERAL FUND
Automated Parking Service (Flow bird) - Communications 1 90,000              - - - - 90,000              
Fire Escape - Sandblasting & Repainting - Facilities 1 55,000              - - - - 55,000              

Total General Fund 145,000            - - - - 145,000            

GOLF COURSE FUND
#1 Tee & Green Construction GLF26-01 1 75,000              - - - - 75,000              
Driving Range Reconstruction GLF26-02 1 200,000            - - - - 200,000            
Spray Boom - Replacement 4 - - 45,000              - - 45,000              
Retention Pond Reconstruction 4 - 100,000 - - - 100,000            
Wide Area Mower Replacement 1 - 150,000 - - - 150,000            

Total Golf Course Fund 275,000            250,000            45,000              - - 570,000            

GRANT FUND
Curb and sidewalk replacement PW26/30-03 2 78,000              - - - - 78,000              
Federal SF-424 Electrical Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations PW26-01 1 500,000            - - - - 500,000            
Heman Park - Jack Buck Field Lights 1 - - 300,000            - - 300,000            

Total Grant Fund 578,000            - 300,000 - - 878,000            

The table below summarizes the Proposed Capital Improvement Projects by Fund

J - 1 - 5



Summary of 
Capital Improvement Program By Fund Project # Priority FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 Total

The table below summarizes the Proposed Capital Improvement Projects by Fund

PARK AND STORM WATER SALES TAX FUND
Heman Park Pavillion Roof Replacement 3 - 50,000 - - - 50,000              
Annual Tree Trimming Program PRF26/30-04 1 200,000            200,000 200,000            200,000         200,000         1,000,000         
Dead and or Hazardous Tree Removal and Replacement Program PRF26/30-02 1 50,000              160,000 170,000            180,000         190,000         750,000            
EAB Tree Replacement Program PRFOR26/30-02 1 50,000              75,000              75,000              75,000           75,000           350,000            
Tree Replacement Program for Ferguson & Pershing Avenue PRFOR26/30-03 1 100,000            - - - - 100,000            
Heman Park Pool - Filter Room Improvement PRF-HEM26-11 1 100,000            - - - - 100,000            
Cent Commons Generator 1 - 200,000 - - - 200,000            
Street: Two (2) Dump Truck Replacement 1 - 213,000 220,000            220,000         - 653,000 
Heman Park Jack Buck Field Improvement: Grass Warning Track and Irrigation 3 - 35,000 - - - 35,000              
Lewis Park Playground Improvements 3 - - 65,000              - - 65,000              
Message Board Trailer 2 - 25,000 - - - 25,000              
Metcalfe Park Site Improvements 1 - 45,000 - - - 45,000              
Eastgate Park Basketball Court Improvements 1 - 30,000 - - - 30,000              
Heman Park Jack Buck Field Solar Scoreboard 1 - 30,000 - - - 30,000              
Heman Park Pool - Pool Painting 1 - 100,000 - - - 100,000            
Heman Park Tennis Court Surface 1 - 120,000 - - - 120,000            
Millar Park Solar/Electric Scoreboard 1 - 25,000 - - - 25,000              
Mona Trail Restoration 1 - 575,000 - - - 575,000            
Park Security & Ballfield Light 2 - 20,000 20,000              - - 40,000              
Forestry: Aerial Lift/Bucket Truck 1 - 450,000 - - - 450,050            
Forestry Truck with Water Tank 1 - 100,000 - - - 100,000            
Front End Loader 1 - 275,000 - - - 275,000            
Heman Park Community Center Generator 2 - 100,000 - - - 100,000            
Mobile Stage Replacement 2 - - 350,000            - - 350,000            
Parks 3/4 Ton Truck Replacement Program (3 truck for 5 years) 2 - 195,000 195,000            195,000         195,000         780,000            
Heman Park Pool - Aqua Zipline 4 - - 35,000              - - 35,000              
Heman Park Pool - Climbing Wall 1 - 75,000 - - - 75,000              

Total Park and Storm Water Sales Tax Fund 500,000            3,098,000         1,330,000         870,000         660,000         6,458,050         

SOLID WASTE FUND
Transfer Station - Concrete Trash Ramp Project PWSW26-02 1 150,000            - - - - 150,000            
Dumpster Replacement (2cu / 3cu / 4cu yard) PWSW26-05 1 40,000              - - - - 40,000              
Recycling Carts Replacement PWSW26-04 1 40,000              - - - - 40,000              
Roll-Off Containers PWSW26-06 1 40,000              - - - - 40,000              
Trash Carts PWSW26-03 1 40,000              - - - - 40,000              
Transfer Station Truck & Trailer - 2026-01 (Equip Fd $100,000) PWSW26-01 1 110,000            - - - - 110,000            

Total Solid Waste Fund 420,000            - - - - 420,000            

GRAND TOTAL OF CIP PROGRAM 3,248,000$       3,858,000$       1,775,000$       970,000$       710,000$       10,561,050$     

J - 1 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

REQUESTED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250609-01

CDBG 2023 Street Improvements- Recommendation of Contract Award 

Mirela Celaj, Director of Public Works Public Works/Ward 3
Consent No

The City Manager recommends awarding the contract of the CDBG 2023 Street Improvements 
project to Ford Asphalt Company, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder, in the amount of $74,950.00. 
This amount is below both the engineer's estimate and CDBG funding for this project.

The total project cost of $74,950.00 will be fully funded through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
allocation. No additional City funds are required. The project cost is within the approved budget and below the 
engineer’s estimate, ensuring efficient use of grant resources.

$74,950.00

The Scope of Work for CDBG 2023 Street Improvements includes milling of existing pavement, 
necessary pavement repairs, and the placement of an asphalt leveling course followed by a final 
asphalt overlay. These improvements will be performed on Kempland Place, Polk Avenue and 
Greensfelder Parking Lot within University City.

Bids for the CDBG 2023 Street Improvements Project were publicly opened on May 29, 2025, 
in accordance with procurement procedures. A total of two bids were received. After careful 
review, staff recommends awarding the contract to Ford Asphalt Company, Inc., a reputable 
contractor and the lowest responsible bidder. The bid amount of $74,950.00 is within budget, 
falling below both the engineer’s estimate and available CDBG funding. 

Memo to City Manager. 
Bid tabulation. 
Ford Asphalt Company, Inc.-Contract. 

Improved Infrastructure 
Public Safety

City Manager, Gregory Rose 06/09/2025

K - 1 - 1



www.ucitymo.org 

MEMORANDUM

TO: Gregory Rose, City Manager 

FROM: Mirela Celaj, Director of Public Works 

DATE:  June 4, 2025 

SUBJECT: CDBG 2023 Street Improvements- Recommendation of Contract Award 

On May 29, 2025, in accordance with applicable procurement procedures, bids for the 
CDBG 2023 Street Improvements Project were publicly opened. A total of two bids were 
received. 

After a thorough evaluation, staff recommends awarding the construction contract to 
Ford Asphalt Company, Inc., a reputable firm and the lowest responsible bidder. The 
submitted bid amount of $74,950.00 is within the project budget and falls below both the 
engineer’s estimate and the available Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funding. 

Staff recommends approval of the contract award to Ford Asphalt Company, Inc., to 
proceed with the implementation of the 2023 Street Improvements Project. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please let me know. 

Thank you. 

K - 1 - 2



P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e:
C

D
G

B
 2

02
3 

St
re

et
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
S

po
ns

or
:

C
ity

 o
f U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 C
ity

P
ro

je
ct

 #
:

PW
ST

20
23

-1
50

4
C

oc
hr

an
 #

:
SC

23
-1

54
9

B
id

 D
at

e:
M

ay
 2

9,
 2

02
5,

 2
:0

0 
p.

m
. 

1
M

ob
iliz

at
io

n
LS

1
$6

,2
00

.0
0

$6
,2

00
.0

0
$8

,9
06

.0
0

$8
,9

06
.0

0
2

Tr
af

fic
 C

on
tro

l
LS

1
$9

95
.0

0
$9

95
.0

0
$2

,5
89

.0
0

$2
,5

89
.0

0
3

Pa
ve

m
en

t M
illi

ng
, 3

" o
r l

es
s 

(fu
ll 

w
id

th
, e

dg
e 

m
ill,

 b
ut

t j
oi

nt
s)

SY
1,

01
0

$6
.5

0
$6

,5
65

.0
0

$6
.7

9
$6

,8
57

.9
0

4
As

ph
al

t P
av

em
en

t (
BP

-1
)

(L
ev

el
in

g 
C

ou
rs

e)
 (1

” o
r L

es
s)

TO
N

14
4

$1
10

.0
0

$1
5,

84
0.

00
$1

25
.4

5
$1

8,
06

4.
80

5
As

ph
al

t P
av

em
en

t (
BP

-1
)

(S
ur

fa
ce

 C
ou

rs
e)

 (2
”)

TO
N

28
8

$1
10

.0
0

$3
1,

68
0.

00
$1

12
.0

0
$3

2,
25

6.
00

6
Pa

rti
al

 D
ep

th
 P

av
em

en
t R

ep
ai

r (
In

cl
ud

es
 m

illi
ng

 a
nd

 a
sp

ha
lt 

pa
tc

h)
(A

llo
w

an
ce

 - 
Al

l L
oc

at
io

ns
 M

ay
 N

ot
 B

e 
Sh

ow
n 

on
 P

la
ns

)
SY

54
5

$2
2.

00
$1

1,
99

0.
00

$2
5.

30
$1

3,
78

8.
50

7
Pa

ve
m

en
t M

ar
ki

ng
 - 

Ar
ro

w
W

hi
te

 (S
ta

nd
ar

d 
W

at
er

bo
rn

e)
EA

2
$5

5.
00

$1
10

.0
0

$1
15

.0
0

$2
30

.0
0

8
Pa

ve
m

en
t M

ar
ki

ng
 4

” -
 P

ar
ki

ng
 S

pa
ce

W
hi

te
 (S

ta
nd

ar
d 

W
at

er
bo

rn
e)

LF
78

5
$2

.0
0

$1
,5

70
.0

0
$4

.0
0

$3
,1

40
.0

0

$7
4,

95
0.

00
$8

5,
83

2.
20

B
id

N
o.

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
:

Sp
en

ce
r C

on
tra

ct
in

g

U
ni

t C
os

t
Ex

te
nd

ed
 C

os
t

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

t
Q

ua
nt

ity

Fo
rd

 A
sp

ha
lt 

C
o.

, I
nc

.

Ex
te

nd
ed

 C
os

t
U

ni
t C

os
t

K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



K - 1 - 14



K - 1 - 15



K - 1 - 16



K - 1 - 17



K - 1 - 18



K - 1 - 19



K - 1 - 20



K - 1 - 21



K - 1 - 22



K - 1 - 23





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

L - 1 - 1

CM20250609-01

City Manager General Updates

Administration - All
City Manager's Report

General updates as provided by the City Manager.

City Manager, Gregory Rose June 9, 2025





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20250609-01

Ordinance Terminating Commission for Access and Local Origination Programming 
(CALOP)  

John F. Mulligan Jr., City Attorney City Manager's Office
Unfin Bus - Bill 9571 yes

City Manager recommends approval. 

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

The Commission for Access and Local Origination Programming (CALOP) was established by Ordinance No. 5284 on May 
6, 1981. CALOP's duty and responsibility has been "to study the educational and cultural programming needs of University 
City and to encourage the development of programs to meet those needs."   Municipal Code Section 120.760. CALOP 
awarded grants, using funds received from incumbent cable television companies pursuant to franchise agreements with 
University City and appropriated by the City Council to CALOP.  Municipal Code Section 120.780. 

In 2007, the Missouri General Assembly passed the Video Service Providers Act, which provided that the obligation of an 
incumbent cable television company to make such franchise payments for public, educational or government (PEG) use 
terminated no later than January 1, 2012. See Section 67.2703.8(1) RSMo. As a result, University City stopped receiving 
funds for CALOP in 2012, and there has not been a dedicated funding source for CALOP since then. CALOP has not met 
since June 22, 2022 and there is a $154,215 balance in the account containing the funds received from incumbent cable 
television companies.  
This Bill terminates CALOP and authorizes the City Council to appropriate the remaining funds in the account for educational 
and programming needs of University City or any other lawful purpose.  

Bill No, 9571

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose June 9, 2025

M - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY: DATE:   May 27, 2025 

BILL NO.  9571 ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTIONS 120.140, 120.750, 120.760, 120.770, 120.780, 
120.790, 120.800, 120.810 AND 120.820 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO THE COMMISSION FOR ACCESS AND LOCAL ORIGINATION 
PROGRAMMING (CALOP), AND TERMINATING CALOP. 

            BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

            Section 1. Sections 120.140, 120.750. 120.760, 120.770, 120.780, 120.790, 120.800, 
120.810 and 120.820 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to the Commission for 
Access and Local Origination Programming (CALOP), are hereby repealed and CALOP is  
terminated.  

            Section 2. Ordinance Nos. 5284, 6603, 6613 and 7021, codified in said Sections of 
the University City Municipal Code, are hereby repealed. 

            Section 3. Any funds received by University City to support CALOP that have not 
been appropriated by the City Council may be appropriated by it for educational and 
programming needs of University City or any other lawful purpose.  

            Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force after its passage as 
provided by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2025. 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
City Clerk 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

__________________________________ 
City Attorney  

M - 1 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

REQUESTED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20250609-01

Compensation Ordinance Adjustments

Gregory Rose City Manager
New Business -Bill 9572 Yes

City Manager recommends updating the Pay Ordinance with a 1.5% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) for the new fiscal year. 

$282,840

$282,840 NA

General Fund – 01 General Fund – 01

The proposed ordinance seeks to adjust the salaries to account for a 1.5% Cost of Living 
Adjustment on the first full pay period of the 25-26 fiscal year.  The categories to be adjusted 
include all full-time employees (both uniform and non-uniform) as well as part-time regular 
employees 

The inflation for 2025-2026 is anywhere from approximately 2.1% to 3% depending on which 
source is utilized. 

Draft Bill 9572

Employees

City Manager, Gregory Rose June 9, 2025

N - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY:  DATE:     June 9, 2025 

BILL NO.  9572 ORDINANCE NO: 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY 
OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND 
AFTER JULY 1, 2025, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7376. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  From and after July 1, 2025, City employees within the classified service of 
the City, hereinafter designated, shall receive as compensation for their services such amounts 
as may be fixed by the City Manager in accordance with Schedule A (Base Pay), included herein, 
with a salary not less than the lowest amount and not greater than the highest amount set forth 
in Schedule A, and shall additionally receive as compensation for their services such benefits 
generally provided in the Administrative Regulations and Civil Service Rules now in effect, all of 
which are hereby adopted, approved, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

N - 1 - 2



 

N - 1 - 3



 

  
    N - 1 - 4



  
     N - 1 - 5



  
  N - 1 - 6



 

 

 
 

N - 1 - 7



 
 
 
 
 Section 2. From and after July 1, 2025, seasonal and regular part-time employees of 
the City may be employed at an hourly rate in accordance with the following Schedules B1 and 
B2 (hourly pay rates for regular part-time employees and seasonal employees, respectively).

N - 1 - 8



 

  

N - 1 - 9



  

N - 1 - 10



 

  

N - 1 - 11



  

N - 1 - 12



 Se
ct

io
n 

3.
 

Fr
om

 a
nd

 a
fte

r 
on

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
02

5,
 C

ity
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 th
e 

un
cl

as
si

fie
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
, e

xc
ep

t a
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
no

te
d,

 s
ha

ll 
re

ce
iv

e 
as

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
he

re
in

af
te

r s
et

 fo
rth

, o
r w

he
re

 a
 g

ra
de

 in
 s

al
ar

y 
is

 s
pe

ci
fie

d,
 

su
ch

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
as

 m
ay

 b
e 

fix
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 g

ra
de

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

Sc
he

du
le

 C
 (b

as
e 

pa
y 

ra
te

s 
fo

r u
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

 fu
ll-

tim
e,

 p
ar

t-t
im

e,
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
r g

ra
nt

-fu
nd

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s)
 a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

ad
di

tio
na

lly
 re

ce
iv

e 
as

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

uc
h 

be
ne

fit
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 n

ow
 in

 e
ffe

ct
, a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 h

er
eb

y 
ad

op
te

d,
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

, a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 h
er

ei
n 

by
 th

is
 re

fe
re

nc
e.

   
 

 

N - 1 - 13



 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

N - 1 - 14



 

 

N - 1 - 15



Section 4. From and after July 1, 2025, all full-time non-executive, non-administrative or 
non-professional employees shall be subject to the work week or work cycle and regulations 
relating to overtime work, except as noted.  A listing of executive, administrative, and 
professionally designated employees or positions shall be issued by the City Manager. 

 
1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours 

worked in excess of 40 per week. 
 

2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their 
designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 
 

3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police 
personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours 
per week.  

 
4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department 

directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors 
in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of time and one-half up to 
an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions.  

 
5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel 

who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when 
authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in 
lieu thereof, in the Police Chief’s discretion, the Police Chief may grant compensatory time off 
also at the rate of time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor 
Standards Act provisions. 

 
6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are 

not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in 
advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, in 
the Fire Chief’s discretion, the Fire Chief may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of 
time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 

 
7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated 

for any hours in excess of 56 hours. 
 
Section 5.  
 

A. From and after July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades shown, 
shall receive compensation for five years consecutive City service, with the exception of 
military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from the 
sixth (6th) year through the seventh (7th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  $63 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant    67 
      P-5  Police Captain      71  

 

N - 1 - 16



B. From and after July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades shown,
shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the exception of
military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from and
after the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year:

In Pay Grade  Monthly Amount 
P-2 Police Officer  $49 
P-3 Police Sergeant 123 
P-4 Police Lieutenant 132 
P-4 Police Captain 142 

C. From and after on July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown,
shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception of
military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from and
after the eleventh (11th) year through the fourteenth (14th) year:

In Pay Grade   Monthly Amount 
P-2 Police Officer  $80 

D. From and after on July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown,
shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the exception of
military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from and
after the fifteenth (15th) year:

In Pay Grade   Monthly Amount 
P-2 Police Officer      $92 

E. From and after July 1, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in the pay
grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven (7) years consecutive City service,
excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts,
from the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year:

In Pay Grade   Monthly Amount 
F-1 Paramedic Firefighters $77 
F-2 Paramedic Fire Captains   86 

F. From and after on July 1, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in the
pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for ten (10) years consecutive City service,
excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts,
from the eleventh (11th) year through the twentieth (20th) year:

 In Pay Grade Monthly Amount 
F-1 Paramedic Firefighters $133 
F-2 Paramedic Fire Captains   133 

N - 1 - 17



G. From and after on July 1, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in the 
pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for twenty (20) years consecutive City service, 
excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amount, from 
the twenty-first (21st) year: 
 
 

In Pay Grade                     Monthly Amount  
F-1       Paramedic Firefighters       $168 
F-2       Paramedic Fire Captains       168 

 
For the purpose of calculating consecutive service in this section, time served in the  
classifications of Firefighter and Paramedic Firefighter is combined for the same person. 
 
Section 6. From and after July 1, 2025, all full-time employees shall have their hourly rate  

computed as follows: 
 
1.   The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or  
average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying the 
monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080. 
 
2    The hourly rate for full-time Paramedic Firefighters, Paramedic Fire Captains and Battalion  
Chiefs of the Fire Department, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying the monthly  
rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,912. 
 
Section 7.  Ordinance No. 7376 and all ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed. 
 
Section 8.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from its passage as provided by 
law. 
 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of June, 2025. 
  
 
             
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
City Attorney  

N - 1 - 18


	Blank Page
	J1 - All - FY26 Budget Public Hearing 06.09.25 (1).pdf
	COPY
	All Fund Budget Summaries - Council Agenda FY26 06.09.25 (3).pdf
	All Funds Budget Summary 

	City Wide Operating Budget - Council Agenda 06.09.25 (4).pdf
	City-Wide Op Budget by Dept

	CIP-2026 Thru 2030 - Council Agenda 06.09.25 (5).pdf
	Summary by Fund 


	K1 - All - CDBG 2023 Street Improvement R.pdf
	COPY
	University City - CDBG 2023 Street Improvements - Bid Tabulation.pdf
	Bid Tabulation

	Blank Page

	L1 - City Mgr General Updates.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	M1 - All - Bill 9571- Terminating CALOP.pdf
	COPY
	M1 - Cover - Bill 9571 - Terminating CALOP.pdf
	COPY


	J1 - All - FY26 Budget Public Hearing 06.09.25 (1).pdf
	COPY
	All Fund Budget Summaries - Council Agenda FY26 06.09.25 (3).pdf
	All Funds Budget Summary 

	City Wide Operating Budget - Council Agenda 06.09.25 (4).pdf
	City-Wide Op Budget by Dept

	CIP-2026 Thru 2030 - Council Agenda 06.09.25 (5).pdf
	Summary by Fund 


	N1 - All - Bill 9572 Comp Ord June2025.pdf
	COPY
	Bill 9572 - Comp Ord.pdf
	Compensation Ordinance and Pay and Classification Plan_May2025_2.pdf
	1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours worked in excess of 40 per week.
	2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards...
	3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours per week.
	4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the r...
	5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and o...
	6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half...
	7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated for any hours in excess of 56 hours.
	B. From and after July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the fo...
	C. From and after on July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the fo...
	D. From and after on July 1, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in t...

	1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.






